

GCE

AS and A Level Specification

Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles)

For exams from June 2014 onwards
For certification from June 2014 onwards



Contents

| 1 | Introduction | 2 |
|-----|--|----|
| 1.1 | Why choose AQA? | 2 |
| 1.2 | Why choose Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles)? | 2 |
| 1.3 | How do I start using this specification? | 3 |
| 1.4 | How can I find out more? | 3 |
| | | |
| 2 | Specification at a Glance | 4 |
| 3 | Subject Content | 5 |
| 3.1 | Unit 1 TEXT1 Materials, Components and Application | 5 |
| 3.2 | Unit 2 TEXT2 Learning Through Designing and Making | 9 |
| 3.3 | Unit 3 TEXT3 Design and Manufacture | 15 |
| 3.4 | Unit 4 TEXT4 Design and Making Practice | 20 |
| 4 | Scheme of Assessment | 27 |
| 4.1 | Aims | 27 |
| 4.2 | Assessment Objectives | 27 |
| 4.3 | National Criteria | 28 |
| 4.4 | Prior Learning | 28 |
| 4.5 | Synoptic Assessment and Stretch and Challenge | 29 |
| 4.6 | Access to Assessment for Disabled Students | 29 |
| 4.0 | Access to Assessment for Disabled Students | 29 |
| 5 | Administration | 30 |
| 5.1 | Availability of Assessment Units and Certification | 30 |
| 5.2 | Entries | 30 |
| 5.3 | Private Candidates | 30 |
| 5.4 | Access Arrangements and Special Consideration | 31 |
| 5.5 | Language of Examinations | 31 |
| 5.6 | Qualification Titles | 31 |
| 5.7 | Awarding Grades and Reporting Results | 31 |
| 5.8 | Re-sits and Shelf-life of Unit Results | 32 |
| 6 | Coursework Administration | 33 |
| | | |
| 6.1 | Supervision and Authentication of Coursework | 33 |
| 6.2 | Malpractice | 33 |
| 6.3 | Teacher Standardisation | 34 |
| 6.4 | Internal Standardisation of Marking | 34 |
| 6.5 | Annotation of Coursework | 34 |
| 6.6 | Submitting Marks and Sample Work for Moderation | 34 |
| 6.7 | Factors Affecting Individual Candidates | 35 |
| 6.8 | Retaining Evidence and Re-using Marks | 35 |
| 6.9 | Candidate Record Forms | 35 |
| 7 | Moderation | 36 |
| | | |
| 7.1 | Moderation procedures | 36 |
| 7.2 | Post-moderation Procedures | 36 |
| | Appendices | 37 |
| Α | Performance Descriptions | 37 |
| В | Spiritual, Moral, Ethical, Social and other Issues | 43 |
| С | Overlaps with other Qualifications | 43 |
| D | Key Skills | 44 |
| | | |

Vertical black lines indicate a significant change or addition to the previous version of this specification.

1 Introduction

1.1 Why choose AQA?

It's a fact that AQA is the UK's favourite exam board and more students receive their academic qualifications from AQA than from any other board. But why does AQA continue to be so popular?

Specifications

Ours are designed to the highest standards, so teachers, students and their parents can be confident that an AQA award provides an accurate measure of a student's achievements. And the assessment structures have been designed to achieve a balance between rigour, reliability and demands on candidates.

Support

AQA runs the most extensive programme of support meetings; free of charge in the first years of a new specification and at a very reasonable cost thereafter. These support meetings explain the specification and suggest practical teaching strategies and approaches that really work.

Service

We are committed to providing an efficient and effective service and we are at the end of the phone when you need to speak to a person about an important issue. We will always try to resolve issues the first time you contact us but, should that not be possible, we will always come back to you (by telephone, email or letter) and keep working with you to find the solution.

Ethics

AQA is a registered charity. We have no shareholders to pay. We exist solely for the good of education in the UK. Any surplus income is ploughed back into educational research and our service to you, our customers. We don't profit from education, you do.

If you are an existing customer then we thank you for your support. If you are thinking of moving to AQA then we look forward to welcoming you.

1.2 Why choose Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles)?

The specification has been designed to encourage candidates to take a broad view of design and technology, to develop their capacity to design and make products and to appreciate the complex relations between design, materials, manufacture and marketing.

The specification retains much of the content of the previous GCE specification and continues to provide candidates with the opportunity to design and make a product (or, in the case of AS, a number of smaller products) in both years of the course.

Changes have been made to the coursework assessment criteria in an effort to assimilate into the major project at A2 the most useful aspects of the Product Study from the previous specification. A revised Candidate Record Form has been introduced in an attempt to limit the volume of work submitted in the folder and provide a focused approach to the whole design-and-make activity.

It is helpful but not necessary for candidates to have studied GCSE Design and Technology before commencing work on this specification and no prior knowledge of design and technology is required for candidates to undertake a course of study based on this specification.

1.3 How do I start using this specification?

Already using the existing AQA Product Design (Textiles) specification?

- Register to receive further information, such as mark schemes, past question papers, details of teacher support meetings, etc, at http://www.aqa.org.uk/rn/askaqa.php.
 Information will be available electronically or in print, for your convenience.
- Tell us that you intend to enter candidates. Then
 we can make sure that you receive all the material
 you need for the examinations. This is particularly
 important where examination material is issued
 before the final entry deadline. You can let us
 know by completing the appropriate Intention to
 Enter and Estimated Entry forms. We will send
 copies to your Exams Officer and they are also
 available on our website

http://www.aqa.org.uk/admin/p_entries.html

Not using the AQA specification currently?

 Almost all centres in England and Wales use AQA or have used AQA in the past and are approved AQA centres. A small minority are not. If your centre is new to AQA, please contact our centre approval team at

centreapproval@aqa.org.uk

1.4 How can I find out more?

Ask AQA

You have 24-hour access to useful information and answers to the most commonly-asked questions at http://www.aga.org.uk/rn/askaga.php

If the answer to your question is not available, you can submit a query for our team. Our target response time is one day.

Teacher Support

Details of the full range of current Teacher Support meetings are available on our website at

http://www.aqa.org.uk/support/teachers.html

There is also a link to our fast and convenient online booking system for Teacher Support meetings at http://events.aqa.org.uk/ebooking

If you need to contact the Teacher Support team, you can call us on 01483 477860 or email us at **teachersupport@aqa.org.uk**

2 Specification at a Glance

AS Examinations

Unit 1 - TEXT1 Materials, Components and Application

50% of AS, 25% of A Level

2 hour written paper

80 marks

Based primarily on Materials and Components and consisting of three sections

Section 1 contains compulsory limited response questions

Section 2 offers a choice of one question from two

Section 3 contains one compulsory question

Available June only

Unit 2 - TEXT2 Learning Through Designing and Making

50% of AS, 25% of A Level

Coursework - approx 50 hours

80 marks

Written (or electronic) design portfolio

Manufactured outcome(s)

Coursework may take a number of forms: a single design-and-make project, two smaller projects and/or a portfolio of work

Available June only

A2 Examinations

Unit 3 - TEXT3 Design and Manufacture

25% of A Level

2 hour written paper

84 marks

Based primarily on Design and Manufacture and consisting of two sections

Candidates answer three questions: one question from three in each section, plus a final question from either section

Includes synoptic assessment

Available June only

Unit 4 - TEXT4 Design and Making Practice

25% of A Level

Coursework - approx 60 hours

85 marks

Written (or electronic) design folder

Manufactured outcome

Candidates submit evidence of a single, substantial designing and making activity

Available June only



AS Award 1561

A Level Award 2561

3 Subject Content

3.1 Unit 1 TEXT1 Materials, Components and Application

Candidates should have the opportunity to study and work with a variety of textile materials to enable them to understand the working characteristics, physical properties, cost and availability which influence the choice of materials in design situations. Knowledge will be required of a wide range of components used in the making of textile products.

Candidates should have a broad knowledge of the manufacturing systems used in the manufacture of textile materials and products for apparel, household and industrial applications. Through critical appraisal of specified products, they should understand how materials and components are worked to become parts of a design realisation, initially as toiles, prototypes or models.

Candidates should be encouraged to explore practical applications of processing methods as appropriate to the products they design and make. They should plan suitable production systems for the industrial manufacture of finished prototypes which take into consideration quality assurance and quality control.

Candidates should develop knowledge and understanding of the basic elements of design in order to encourage the application of personal judgement and appropriate criteria in the appraisal of textile products and systems. At the same time, this knowledge should influence candidates in their approach to designing and making quality products that meet specific needs of identified users.

Candidates should have the opportunity to work in both two- and three-dimensional forms, engaging in creative activities in which ideas take forms, which satisfy the claims of originality, excellence and utility. They should develop designs from a variety of starting points and respond in an intuitive as well as a systematic manner.

Candidates should gain an understanding of industrial and commercial practices within the area of design and market influences on design in the areas of textiles.

Graphic communication should be used to illustrate construction processes within design portfolios. ICT should be an integral part of the course.

3.1.1 AS Section A: Materials and Components

Fibre types

Source and classification of the main fibre groups

Understand that fibres come from a variety of different sources and that their qualities are related to the fibre group to which they belong. Candidates should have sufficient outline knowledge of the manufacturing process to enable them to understand how this affects properties, eg melt spinning of synthetic fibres produces smooth continuous filament. Detailed knowledge of processes is not required.

Natural fibres

Plant/cellulose: cotton, linen, ramie Animal/protein: wool, silk, hair

Manufactured fibres

Regenerated fibres: eg viscose, acetate, modal Synthetic (including microfibres): eg nylon, polyester, acrylic, elastomerics, PVC

Commercial names of fibres and fabrics

Be aware of popular names of natural, man-made and synthetic fibres and fabrics, including Tactel, Lyocell, Tencel, Lycra, polar fleece and Trevira

Yarns

Carding, spinning

Understand that fibres need to be made into yarns to manufacture woven and knitted fabrics. The importance of twist

Yarn types

Knowledge of basic yarn types and how they influence the qualities of the fabrics made from them, eg staple and filament yarns, single and plied yarns, textured and bulked yarns, fancy yarns

Blending and mixing of fibres

Staple fibre blends, core spun

Fabric manufacture

Knowledge of the structure of the main construction methods and the differences between them. Understanding of the qualities given to the fabrics by the construction methods, including typical end-uses

Woven

Plain (Tabby)
Twill and satin weaves
Pile weaves, eg cut/loop pile
Special effects achieved with coloured yarns and
Blended fibres, boucle and crepe fabrics

Knitted

Weft knits, eg single and double jerseys, rib knit, hand and machine knits

Warp knits, including, tricot, velour

Non-wovens

Production of felts and bonded fabrics

Smart materials created to provide specific properties

Awareness of a range of different smart fabrics, eg heat reactive, fabrics developed for health and safety applications, performance fabrics

Fabric finishes

Knowledge of the effects of finishes and the reasons they are needed in relation to the fibre/fabric properties and end use of the product. Detailed knowledge of the chemicals involved and methods of application is not required.

Brushing, calendering, flame retardancy, water resistance, non-iron/crease resistance, stain resistance, shrink resistance, heat setting to give permanent pleats

Surface decoration

Dyeing; domestic and industrial methods (vat, discharge and resist), stages at which dye is applied (fibre, yarn, fabric, finished product), dye fastness Printing (screen, roller, transfer, ink jet, stencilling) Embroidery, quilting

Product components

Candidates should have knowledge of a variety of components and their appropriateness for a range of products in relation to the end-user, fabric and design considerations.

Fastenings

Including buttons with buttonholes/loops, zips, poppers, clips, buckles, clasps, Velcro, D-rings, hooks and eyes, fabric and ribbon ties

Trims

Including braids, ribbons, piping, edgings, petersham, bindings, fringing, lace, beads, sequins, diamantes, motifs

Threads

Including sewing threads, embroidery threads, special effect threads

Working properties of fibres and fabrics

Knowledge and understanding of the properties of fibres and fabrics and their physical characteristics in relation to their choice for various design solutions

Fibre properties

Strength, extensibility, elasticity, fineness, electrostatic charge, lustre, thermal insulation, flammability, moisture absorption, shrinkage

Fabric qualities

Strength, durability, elasticity, flammability, thermal qualities, creasing, absorption, stretch, formability, handle, drape, weight, pattern repeat, directional pile, nap. texture. Justre

Testing of materials

Experience of basic testing to determine appropriate properties in relation to chosen end use Awareness of fabric testing undertaken in industry

Manipulating and combining materials

Understand the need to combine materials and have outline knowledge of the main methods used.

Mixtures, blends and laminates

Fibre content, properties and typical applications, reasons for use

Combining materials

Interfacings, underlinings, linings, interlinings; types and applications in relation to fabric weight and construction, and end use of product

3.1.2 AS Section B: Design and Market Influences

Development of design

History of design

Study to include some of the major developments of design throughout the nineteenth and twentieth centuries

Understanding of influences on aesthetic attitudes to style and fashion up to the present day

Product evolution and product analysis

A study of manufactured products to illustrate the way in which the demands of a product have evolved as a result of new materials and technologies.

Appraisal of functional, aesthetic, technical and economic considerations in the design and manufacture of products

Consideration of aspects of physical surroundings as shaped by designers, craftsmen and technologists

Design in practice

Design methodology

Analysis, research, inspiration, idea generation, illustration, modelling, planning, evaluating and testing

The role of the designer

An understanding of the varying roles of the commercial designer Exploring different approaches to designing Understanding of manufacturing constraints on product design

An awareness of the environmental issues in relation to the design of textile products

Social and moral implications of product design

Design sources

Candidates should be able to respond to a variety of stimuli drawing from direct observation of natural and man-made forms, secondary sources in relation to specified design briefs.

Aiding the design process

Use of inspirational moodboards, designer sketchbooks. Analysing working and aesthetic characteristics of a range of materials and surface decoration techniques. Understand industrial process used to produce these effects. Recognising design faults in existing products

Market research

Client profiling, identifying target market, consumer and product research, eg opinion polls, questionnaires

The marketing function

Customer identification
An awareness of the use of new technology in the marketing of textile products
Product costing, calculation and profit
Presentation of colourways

Product life cycles

Understanding the expected life cycle of products

Copyright protection

The issue of copyright, patenting and their importance to the designer and manufacturer

Communication methods

Candidates should be able to communicate the detail and form of products, environments and systems so that they may be manufactured

They should be able to identify and use appropriate means to communicate ideas, design proposals and evaluations to a range of audiences, including clients and potential users of the product, eg presentation boards, fashion illustration, interior sketches, swatches, colourways

Illustration

Selection and use of appropriate 2D/3D techniques, eg sketching, drawing, use of mixed media, collage

Enhancement

Rendering – use of line/tone/colour/form
Texture – to represent materials, surface finishes and applied decoration

Presentation – two-dimensional and three-

Presentation – two-dimensional and three-dimensional products

Information drawing

Quantitative – graphs, pie charts, bar charts, pictograms

Organisational and topological – flow charts, sequential/schematic

Modelling

Using three-dimensional form – mock-ups, prototypes, scale models

Use of ICT

Selection and use of CAD, word processing/DTP, spreadsheets, databases and modelling software

Design in the human context

Human needs

Designing to meet physiological, psychological and sociological needs of various groups of people, eg young, elderly, physically handicapped in different environments and communities

Human factors

Ergonomic and anthropometric influences and constraints

The relationship between people, products and the environment

Health and safety

Risk assessment in relation to the design and manufacture of products

Safety standards imposed by BSI, recommended by the DTI for product design

Recommendations for health and safety at work for employees and the implications for the employer

Applications/material areas

Apparel fabrics to satisfy basic clothing requirements, eg protection, adornment, fashion, utility, sportswear (performance sport and leisurewear), footwear, accessories

Household fabrics, eg table/bed linen, furnishing accessories, furnishings, floorings

Industrial textiles, eg fire protective wear, components for vehicles/machines, automotive fabrics, tents, awnings, harnesses, medical textiles

Environmental concerns

Use of natural resources, materials utilisation, conservation, waste disposal/management, pollution in broad terms, recycling

Green technology, environmental problems

3.1.3 AS Section C: Processes and Manufacture

Industrial and commercial practice

Manufacturing systems

One-off, batch, mass/line production, vertical, in-house production, pre-manufactured components, manufacturing specifications
Response to market demands
Manufacturing sub-systems
Just in time production (JIT)

ICT application

Knowledge and understanding of CAD/CAM for designing and manufacturing processes, fabric production, pattern production, embroidery, garment manufacture

CAD (Computer Aided Design); design of fabrics, products, colourways, product modelling pattern construction

CAM (Computer Aided Manufacture); understanding of fabric manufacture, lay planning, computer controlled cutting, sewing, pressing, decoration

ICT used in the integration of manufacture (CIM)

Pattern drafting

Basic pattern/template drafting, including the knowledge and use of technical terms (basic block, labelling and notching, balance marks, seam allowance and ease)

Principles of grading

Basic adaptation to create unique individual styles

Product manufacture

Fabric preparation, lay planning, marking and cutting out, methods of joining, shaping, finishing of edges, selection of construction techniques appropriate to the fabric being used and the product being made. Pressing – use of correct tools Labelling and packaging

To plan appropriate methods and processes for the manufacture of chosen products, including amendments and adaptations of prototypes and the use of industrial manufacturing processes

Product maintenance

Care and maintenance of products Information shown on care labels, including symbols used Relationship between care recommendations and fibre/fabric properties

Environmental concerns

An awareness of the environmental issues in relation to fibre/fabric production and the dyeing of fabrics and piece goods

Health and safety

Risk assessment and health and safety issues related to the manufacture of textile products

Systems and control

Quality assurance and quality control

Quality control checks throughout the manufacturing process

Systems diagrams – input, process, output Loop feedback systems which ensure quality Awareness of quality and finish in the manufacture of own products

3.2 Unit 2 TEXT2 Learning Through Designing and Making

This unit is the AS Centre-Assessed Component.

This is a design-and-make unit where knowledge of the AS subject content is applied to the design and making of the candidates' own projects.

The Assessment Criteria for AS Coursework are given below. AQA will provide exemplar material and detailed guidance to illustrate the standard of work required for this coursework unit.

AS candidates' work will be marked out of a total of 80 marks.

Five criteria are produced for assessment and each criterion has five bands of marks. Each band should be viewed holistically when making assessments; a weakness in one element of a level, for example, can be balanced by strengths in another. Candidates who produce no work for a criterion, or who produce work below AS standard, should be awarded a mark of zero.

Summary of Assessment Criteria

| Assessment Criteria | AO1 Designing | AO2 Making | Maximum Mark Allocation |
|---|------------------|---------------|-------------------------------|
| 1 Investigation and Clarification of Problems | 8 | | 8 |
| 2 Development of Design Proposal | 24 | | 24 |
| 3 Making / Modelling | | 24 | 24 |
| 4 Evaluation and Testing | 8 | 4 | 12 |
| 5 Communication and Presentation | 8 | 4 | 12 |
| Total | 48 | 32 | 80 |

| Criterion 1 Mark Band | Investigation and Clarification of Problems |
|--------------------------|---|
| 7 – 8 | Comprehensive, organised range of sources of information, including relevant practical investigations, taking into account current trends, available technologies and the needs of the client |
| | Perceptive analysis of information |
| | Comprehensive specification, well reasoned and based on research and investigation |
| 5 – 6 | Wide range of sources of information, organised and supported by relevant practical investigations, taking into account current trends, available technologies and the needs of the client |
| | Good analysis of information |
| | Well-explained specification which reflects research and investigation |
| 3 – 4 | A range of sources of information, supported by relevant practical investigations, with some consideration of available technologies and the needs of the client |
| | Some analysis of information |
| | A specification which is a list of points with some explanation |
| 2 | • Narrow range of sources of information, supported by relevant practical investigations, with little awareness of available technologies or the needs of the client |
| | Little analysis of information |
| | The specification is a range of points with one or two points explained |
| 0 – 1 | Minimal sources of information and little awareness of the needs of the client |
| | The specification identifies a few obvious points which are stated simplistically. |

| Criterion 2 Mark Band | Development of Design Proposal |
|--------------------------|---|
| 19 – 24 | Comprehensive, imaginative and feasible ideas |
| | Excellent development of a sophisticated/elegant solution achieved by exploring and experimenting with different proportions, material combinations and the functions of materials, methods of production, construction and modelling |
| | Full explanation of all decisions made |
| | Comprehensive and detailed plan of making, including relevant quality control checks, in order to achieve a high quality outcome in the stated time |
| 13 – 18 | Varied range of imaginative and feasible ideas |
| | Good development of ideas achieved through experimental work and use of a range of different materials, showing understanding of the functions of the materials, construction techniques and modelling |
| | Clear explanations given of all decisions made |
| | Detailed plan of making, including relevant quality control checks, which identifies the sequence of activities to achieve a good quality outcome in the stated time |
| 9 – 12 | Adequate range of feasible ideas with some imagination |
| | Adequate development to allow a successful product, with some experimental work with different materials and construction techniques |
| | Sound explanations of decisions made |
| | Good plan that identifies the essential stages of making; a predicted time schedule is given |
| 5 – 8 | Limited range of feasible ideas, little imagination |
| | Basic development with a little testing |
| | Some explanation of decisions made |
| | A plan that identifies the essential stages of making |
| 0 – 4 | Simple ideas, lack of imagination |
| | Minor changes to initial idea and no evidence of development |
| | Simplistic explanation of design decisions made |
| | Limited plan for the main stages of making |

| Criterion 3 Mark Band | Making / Modelling |
|--------------------------|--|
| 19 – 24 | High level of making/modelling skills and accuracy using a varied range of materials with ability to adapt the original idea |
| | Planned quality control checks are applied throughout the making/modelling to ensure consistency and safety |
| | Outcome satisfies all major points of the specification |
| | • In-depth and detailed use of appropriate modelling strategies which help clarify the form of the prototype or product and production/manufacturing methods |
| 13 – 18 | Very good level of making/modelling skills using a range of materials at well above average level of accuracy |
| | Planned quality control checks are applied to the making/modelling |
| | Outcome satisfies most major points of the specification |
| | Sound use of appropriate modelling strategies which help clarify the form of the prototype or product and production/manufacturing methods |
| 9 – 12 | Good level of making skills using materials at and above average level of accuracy |
| | Planned quality control checks used in parts of the making/modelling |
| | Outcome satisfies some points of the specification |
| | Appropriate modelling strategies used to help develop the prototype or product |
| 5 – 8 | Adequate level of skill using materials with some confidence |
| | Some attention paid to the quality of the finished product |
| | Parts of the outcome satisfy some points of the specification |
| | Some modelling strategies used to help develop the prototype or product |
| 0 – 4 | Some ability to manipulate a limited range of materials using basic techniques |
| | Little attention paid to quality of the finished product |
| | Little of the specification is met |
| | Limited evidence of modelling strategies used to develop the prototype or product |

| Criterion 4 Mark Band | Evaluation and Testing |
|--------------------------|--|
| 9 – 12 | Detailed and comprehensive testing strategy applied throughout, with results used to inform the design and refine any modifications |
| | All aspects of the final prototype or product tested and evaluated against the specification |
| | Comments of others used appropriately to develop the prototype or product to improve the effectiveness of the final outcome |
| 7 – 8 | Appropriate testing strategy applied throughout, with results used to inform the design and any modifications |
| | All relevant combinations of materials and processes tested and evaluated against the specification |
| | Views of others sought at various points during the design process and used to develop and improve the outcome |
| 5 – 6 | • From a structured testing procedure, conclusions are drawn of ways in which to improve the product. |
| | Some combinations of materials and processes are tested and evaluated against the specification |
| | Other people's opinions taken into account |
| 3 – 4 | From a basic testing procedure, conclusions are used to suggest ways of improving the product |
| | Limited testing and evaluation against the specification |
| | Other people's opinions sought |
| 0 – 2 | A basic testing procedure generates some conclusions |
| | Basic testing and evaluation against the specification |
| | Formative and summative comments largely predictable and based on personal opinion |

| Criterion 5 Mark Band | Communication and Presentation |
|--------------------------|--|
| 9 – 12 | Excellent level of communication and presentation, including competent use of appropriate technical language |
| | Excellent wide range of appropriate materials, techniques and media used to convey details of designing and making |
| | Complex ideas expressed extremely clearly and fluently in a structured and relevant way, with few, if any, errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling |
| 7 – 8 | Very good level of communication and presentation, including competent use of appropriate technical language |
| | Very good range of appropriate materials, techniques and media used to convey details of designing and making |
| | Moderately complex ideas expressed clearly and fluently in a reasonably structured and relevant manner, with only occasional errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling |
| 5 – 6 | Good level of communication and presentation with good use of appropriate technical language |
| | Good range of materials, techniques and media used to convey the details of designing and making |
| | Straightforward ideas expressed clearly, with some errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling but not sufficient to suggest a weakness in these areas |
| 3 – 4 | Reasonable level of communication and presentation with limited use of appropriate technical language |
| | A limited range of materials, techniques and media used to convey the details of designing and making |
| | • Simple ideas expressed clearly, with errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling indicating a weakness in these areas |
| 0 – 2 | Evidence of communication and presentation at basic level with little use of technical language |
| | Some attempt has been made to convey the details of designing and making |
| | Some attempt made to express ideas, with significant errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling suggesting major weaknesses in these areas |

3.3 Unit 3 TEXT3 Design and Manufacture

The A2 content enables candidates to further develop their knowledge and understanding of materials and components, design and market influences and processes and manufacture. The synoptic assessment will focus particularly on knowledge of materials and components in relation to the context of application, market demands and through processes and manufacture. A2 coursework will allow candidates the opportunity to further illustrate their understanding of all three strands of the specification at a level higher than that produced for AS.

3.3.1 A2 Section A: Materials and Components

Fibre Classification and Generic Names

Classification of fibres from both traditional and non-traditional sources for identification of and an understanding of the products developed from these fibres

Natural fibres

- generic terms Cellulose (vegetable); bast, leaf and seed fibres
- Protein (animal); wool, silk (cultivated and wild varieties)
- luxury hair fibres, including cashmere, mohair, angora, llama, Vicuna
- Mineral; asbestos.

Man-made fibres

- Regenerated fibres
 Natural polymers Regenerated cellulosic;
 viscose, modal, lyocell, cupro, acetate and triacetate, rubber, alginate,
- Synthetic
 Synthetic polymers; elastomeric, fluorofibres, polyamides, polyacrylic (acrylics), polyesters,
 Chlorofibres(polyvinyl), polyolefines (polyethylene, polypropylene)
 Aramid fibres
- Inorganic, including glass, carbon, metallic, ceramics
- Shape and formation of fibres An understanding of the different cross-sectional and linear formation that fibres can occur in both natural form and those that can be engineered during synthetic and man-made fibre production

Commercial Names of Fibres and Fabrics

A knowledge of commercial names of fibres and fabrics used in sales and marketing and the recognition of brand familiarity and fibre and fabric promotion.

Fabric Construction Methods

Knowledge of Industrial and hand methods of fabric construction methods

Understanding of a wide range of woven structures, including basic and fancy weaves, twill and satin variations, brocades, jacquards, three yarn system woven fabrics, double cloth and pique fabrics

Special woven effects: yarn dyed stripes, plaids, tartans, madras, checks and crepe

Knowledge of global cultural woven traditions; including the Ashanti strip weaving, the Back strap looms used in South America, Ikat weaving in Indonesia

Understanding of a range of knitted structures – weft knit; plain, single jersey, double jersey, pique, rib knits, jacquard knits, warp knit, locknit, atlas, Raschel lace and net structures

Hand and machine knitted methods, panel knitting, fully fashioned panels, whole garment knitting

Non-woven methods of fabric manufacture – felted, bonded (adhesive or heat), needled. Methods of bonded manufacture, lamination, stitch bonded

Methods of creating open work fabric – leno, lace, net, crotchet, macramé Braid and narrow fabrics

Influence of new technology, micro fibres, breathable membrane systems.

Technical Terms Related to Yarns

Tex, denier systems for numbering yarns

Working Properties

Properties of fibres, yarns and fabrics

An understanding of how properties of different fibres, yarns and fabrics can affect their use in a wide range of commercial applications

An awareness of new performance codes in relation to the selection of materials for a range of end uses

Identify, test and compare the relative properties of fabrics

Knowledge of commercial testing to meet British Standards (BSI fabric testing)

Consumer advice in relation to the performance of different fabrics

Evaluate the use of materials testing as set out in British Standards

Manipulating and Combining Materials

Yarn creation

Understanding of yarn types; folded/plied, cabled, core, fancy, colour effects, structure effects (slub, bourette, boucle, chenille), lustre effects, texturing and textured yarns

Categories of yarns – novelties, specialised, performance.

The importance of mixtures, blends and laminates to include the development of new technologies

Understand the need to blend fibres or produce mixture fabrics or laminates to create aesthetic effects, performance fabrics, improved care and maintenance

The impact of new developments, including smart and reactive materials such as phase changing materials, phosphorescent materials, microencapsulated fibres and fabrics

3.3.2 A2 Section B: Design and Market Influences

Development of Technologies and **Design**

The effects of major developments in textiles technology

Developments in the production of fibre, yarns, fabric, product manufacture, finish, colour application and decoration, production systems, computer control and increased automation

New technological developments in textiles product design

The work of past and present textile designers

As related to textile and fashion products in particular, but also to include design movements and the inherent influences on product design, including trends, street culture, music and the media, world events. To have an understanding of the developments of fashion in clothing, accessories and furnishings. To appreciate the influence and contribution of leading fashion and textile designers.

Design in Practice

Product life cycle

An understanding of life cycle analysis – concepts of product introduction, growth, maturity, decline and replacement, product disposal – relating to the life cycle of a product – impact of recycling and environmental issues

Fashion cycles

Sales and marketing cycles for product groups including – fad, classic, standard. Industry development cycles from colour, fibre trends and predictions to products at the point of sale, eg Influence of trends from fashion, cultural and media sources. Importance and purpose of trade fairs, influence of trends and changes in lifestyle on textile products, lifestyle analysis

Understanding target markets, analysing existing products

The marketing function

Marketing and branding of new fibres and other textile products

The importance of labelling, packaging and corporate identification

The advertising and promotion of textile products using a wide range of media and the use of new technology

The purpose of marketing mix of product, place, promotion, price – use of visual merchandising – different retail markets and points of sale

Role of new technology in marketing and sales of textiles products

Developments in virtual reality and product simulation New technology marketing and product promotion – e commerce

An awareness of multi-national textile companies and the concept of global marketing

Meeting customer requirements/profitability through identifying socio-economic groups and demographic trends, niche marketing

The role of professionals within the textiles industry

The role of buyer, merchandiser, fabric and garment technologist, visual merchandiser

The role of the designer

The professional interfaces between client/designer, designer/manufacturer, manufacturer/retailer, manufacturer/user

An awareness of constraints placed upon designers including environmental issues

Social, political, ethical influences

Selection of materials and components appropriate to specific market requirements

Working to client specifications, designing within budgets

Product classification

Textile product groups – garment product groups including menswear, womenswear, childrenswear, workwear, sportswear, accessories, foundationwear, leisurewear, formal dress, suitability of products for identified market

- Furnishing textiles for domestic and public places
- Industrial textiles
- performance textiles protective textiles

Retail point of sales – High street independent department stores and boutiques, multiple retailers, multiple department stores, chains, mail order, web sites, interactive media

Design in the Human Context

Health and Safety

Issues of health and safety in relation to industrial, commercial and trading practices – health and safety of users of textile products – COSHH

BSI standards for product testing

Impact of technological development

Balance between gain and loss for the individual and the community in terms of ethical, social, environmental and economic considerations.

Environmental concerns

Use of natural resources, organic production, materials utilisation, conservation, waste disposal/management, pollution, recycling, Green technology, environmental problems, planned obsolescence

3.3.3 A2 Section C: Processes and Manufacture

Industrial and Commercial Practice

Appreciation and understanding of the use of CAM for fabric printing, knitting and weaving, pattern drafting and grading, robotic control for garment construction

Use of ICT in manufacturing data control (EDI)

EDP (Electronic Data Processing)

EDI (Electronic Data Interchange)

CAA (Computer Aided Administration) stock control

CAD (Computer Aided Design) design of fabrics, products, colourways, product modelling, pattern construction

CAM (Computer Aided Manufacture) understanding and application of fabric manufacture, lay planning, size grading, controlled cutting, controlled decoration, controlled construction, controlled pressing

PPC (Production Planning and Control) networking

Future implications – CIM (Computer Integrated Manufacture)

Global Production

Global production – offshore production – imports and exports, branded – contracted goods

Manufacturers – Sub-contractors, wholesalers, CMT (Cut, make and trim) operations

Product Maintenance

Care and maintenance of products HLCC

International labelling, symbols, descriptions

Understanding of temperature requirements for different fibres

Testing for colour fastness

Health and Safety

Risk assessment, Health and Safety issues related to production. Role of the HSE and Health and Safety legal requirements

Product Manufacturing

Fibre, yarn and fabric manufacture

Knowledge of the processes used to manufacture fibres and yarns – use of texturing processes including false -twist, knit de knit, air jet – production of stretch yarns, bulked yarns, formation of fancy yarns including chenille

Fabric manufacture

Dyeing: Preparation of fabric (desizing, scouring, bleaching), batch dyeing processes (jig, winch,

jet dyeing methods), continuous dyeing, semicontinuous, resist methods

Dye affinity to different fibres, including direct, reactive, vat, disperse, acid

Grey or greige goods, the dyeing of fibres (stock and top), yarns (skeins), fabric (piece goods), garments – Dyeing in response to consumer demand, dyeing in relation to seasonal trends

Printing methods: direct, discharge, transfer, resist, hand (block, stencils), roller, rotary/flat bed screen-printing, digital printing

Finishing: Intermediate processes including fixation, washing, drying and heat setting

Mechanical finishing – including raising, calendering, embossing, pleating, shrinking, beetling, stone and sand washing, laser cutting

Chemical finishing – including water repellency, laminating, stain resistance, flame resistance, antistatic, mothproofing, anti-pilling, rot proofing, antifelting, hygienic (sanitised)

Coating and lamination

New developments in finishes, including smart and reactive finishes, reflective finishes, photochromic dyes,

Product manufacture

Production systems and distribution – organisation of manufacturing companies

Understanding of Unit production, quantity production; understanding of bespoke production

Production Organisation Systems: synchronised, section, progressive bundle, UPS (Unit production system), to include line and team working, QRM teams

Production Planning and Control: line balancing, factory load, warehouse – packing and dispatch

Response to market demands (QRM)

In-depth production planning to include inputs, processes, outputs, loops and feedback

Understanding of the processes involved in textile product manufacture

Systems and Control

Quality control systems

Control of quality throughout the manufacturing process – quality built into design – inspection checks for quality

Quality assurance, conformance and nonconformance. TQM control systems. Quality control data systems for garment/product manufacture

Awareness of quality and finish in the manufacture of own products

3.4 Unit 4 TEXT4 Design and Making Practice

This unit is the A2 Centre-Assessed Component.

This is a design-and-make unit where knowledge of the AS and A2 subject content is applied to the design and manufacture of candidates' own projects.

The Assessment Criteria for A2 coursework are given below. AQA will provide exemplar material and detailed guidance to illustrate the standard of work required for this coursework unit.

A2 candidates' work will be marked out of a total of 85 marks.

Six criteria are produced for assessment and each criterion has five bands of marks. Each band should be viewed holistically when making assessments; a weakness in one element of a level, for example, can be balanced by strengths in another. Candidates who produce no work for a criterion, or who produce work below A2 standard, should be awarded a mark of zero.

Summary of Assessment Criteria

| Assessment Criteria | AO1 Designing | AO2 Making | Maximum Mark Allocation |
|--|------------------|---------------|-------------------------------|
| 1 Context and Objectives | 5 | | 5 |
| 2 Plan of Action and Clarification of Problem | 6 | 2 | 8 |
| 3 Development of Design Proposal | 26 | | 26 |
| 4 Manufacture / Modelling | | 26 | 26 |
| 5 Conclusions, Evaluations and Recommendations | 8 | 4 | 12 |
| 6 Communication and Presentation | 6 | 2 | 8 |
| Total | 51 | 34 | 85 |

| Criterion 1 Mark Band | Context and Objectives |
|--------------------------|--|
| 5 | Detailed and perceptive understanding of the context which is then used to determine the objectives of the design and manufacture activity |
| 4 | Sound understanding of the context which is used to determine the objectives of the design and manufacture activity |
| 3 | Some understanding of the context which is used to determine objectives of the design and manufacture activity |
| 2 | Little understanding of the context, with few objectives of the design and manufacture activity stated |
| 0 – 1 | Minimal or no understanding of the context. Only basic objectives of the design and manufacture activity are recorded |

| Criterion 2 Mark Band | Plan of Action and Clarification of Problem |
|--------------------------|--|
| 7 – 8 | A detailed and realistic plan of action to meet stated objectives |
| | Uses an extensive range of appropriate investigative techniques, including practical activities (where relevant) |
| | Perceptive analysis of gathered information |
| | A comprehensive, well-reasoned and explained design specification, taking into account the research information gathered |
| 5 – 6 | A detailed plan of action to meet stated objectives |
| | Uses a wide range of appropriate investigative techniques, including practical activities (where relevant) |
| | Good analysis of gathered information |
| | A well-reasoned and explained design specification, taking into account the research information gathered |
| 3 – 4 | A plan of action which meets some of the stated objectives |
| | Uses a range of appropriate investigative techniques, including practical activities (where relevant) |
| | Some analysis of gathered information |
| | A design specification with some explanation, taking into account some of the research information gathered |
| 2 | A simple plan of action |
| | Uses several investigative techniques, including practical activities (where relevant) |
| | Little analysis of gathered information |
| | A simple design specification with one or two points explained |
| 0 – 1 | A limited plan of action |
| | Uses basic investigative techniques, including practical activities (where relevant) |
| | Minimal analysis of gathered information |
| | A limited design specification |

| Criterion 3 Mark Band | Development of Design Proposal |
|--------------------------|--|
| 21 – 26 | Comprehensive and imaginative range of feasible ideas |
| | Sophisticated and elegant solution achieved by exploring different proportions, materials and their functions, methods of production and construction |
| | Design decisions fully explained |
| | Comprehensive and detailed plan for manufacture, with the ability to adapt in the light of changing circumstances |
| 16 – 20 | Varied range of imaginative and feasible ideas |
| | Good development of product achieved by investigating a range of different materials and their functions and methods of production and construction |
| | Most design decisions fully explained |
| | Detailed plan which identifies sequences of activities for manufacture |
| 11 – 15 | An adequate range of feasible ideas with some imagination |
| | Adequate development to allow a successful product to be produced which includes some experimental work with different materials and their functions and methods of production |
| | Sound explanation of most design decisions |
| | Good plan that identifies the essential stages of manufacture |
| 6 – 10 | A limited range of feasible ideas with little imagination |
| | Basic development with little evidence of testing |
| | Basic explanation of design decisions |
| | A plan that identifies the essential stages of manufacture |
| 0 – 5 | Simple ideas, with lack of imagination |
| | Minor changes to the original idea with little evidence of development |
| | Limited explanation of design decisions |
| | Limited plan for the main stages of manufacture |

| Criterion 4 Mark Band | Manufacture / Modelling |
|--------------------------|---|
| 21 – 26 | High standards of manufacture/modelling, using appropriate methods, technologies and materials and using a wide range of skills that demonstrate a high level of accuracy |
| | Demonstrates and applies a thorough understanding of industrial practices |
| | Evidence of appropriate health and safety and quality control checks throughout the making process to ensure consistency |
| | Outcome satisfies all major points of the specification |
| 16 – 20 | A very good standard of manufacture/modelling, using appropriate methods, technologies and materials and using a wide range of skills with a good level of accuracy |
| | Demonstrates and applies a clear understanding of appropriate industrial practices |
| | Necessary health and safety issues and quality control checks built into manufacturing |
| | Outcome satisfies most major points of the specification |
| 11 – 15 | Good standard of manufacture/modelling, using appropriate methods, technologies and materials and using a range of skills with acceptable level of accuracy |
| | Shows some understanding and application of industrial practices |
| | Some consideration of health and safety issues and quality control checks is provided |
| | Outcome satisfies some of the major points of the specification |
| 6 – 10 | Adequate standard of manufacture/modelling, using appropriate methods, technologies and materials and using skills with some accuracy |
| | Shows basic understanding and application of industrial practices |
| | Little evidence of health and safety issues and quality control checks |
| | Outcome satisfies some points of the specification |
| 0 – 5 | Limited standard of manufacture/modelling, using methods, technologies and materials with little or no accuracy |
| | A minimal understanding of industrial practices |
| | Basic application of health and safety |
| | Limited correlation between outcome and specification |

| Criterion 5 Mark Band | Conclusions, Evaluations and Recommendations |
|--------------------------|--|
| 9 – 12 | A critical analysis of the design process and final outcome |
| | Comprehensive testing strategies throughout the work, including, where relevant, comments of others and consideration of industrial practices, used to make perceptive and critical judgements |
| | An excellent understanding of the ways the outcome could be improved or extended |
| 7 – 8 | A detailed analysis of the design process and final outcome |
| | Good testing strategies throughout the work, including, where relevant, comments of others and consideration of industrial practices, used to make appropriate judgements |
| | A good understanding of the ways the outcome could be improved or extended |
| 5 – 6 | Some analysis of the design process and/or final outcome |
| | Reasonable testing strategies throughout the work, including, where relevant, comments of others and consideration of industrial practices, used to make judgements |
| | A reasonable understanding of the ways the outcome could be improved or extended |
| 3 – 4 | Basic analysis of the design process and/or final outcome |
| | Some testing strategies throughout the work, including, where relevant, comments of others and consideration of industrial practices, used to make judgements |
| | Some understanding of the ways the outcome could be improved |
| 0 – 2 | Limited analysis of the design process and/or final outcome |
| | Limited testing strategies throughout the work, including, where relevant, comments of others and consideration of industrial practices, used to make judgements |
| | Little understanding of the ways the outcome could be improved |

| Criterion 6 Mark Band | Communication and Presentation |
|--------------------------|---|
| 7 – 8 | Excellent levels of communication and presentation, including competent use of appropriate technical language |
| | Wide range of appropriate materials, techniques and media which conveys the details of design and manufacture |
| | Complex ideas expressed extremely clearly and fluently in a structured and relevant way with few, if any, errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling |
| 5 – 6 | Very good level of communication and presentation, including competent use of appropriate technical language |
| | A good range of appropriate materials, techniques and media used to convey the details of design and manufacture |
| | Moderately complex ideas expressed clearly and fluently in a reasonably structured and relevant manner with only occasional errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling |
| 3 – 4 | Good level of communication and presentation with good use of appropriate technical language |
| | A variety of appropriate materials, techniques and media used to convey the details of design and manufacture |
| | Straightforward ideas expressed clearly with some errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling but not sufficient to suggest a weakness in these areas |
| 2 | Reasonable level of communication and presentation with limited use of appropriate technical language |
| | Sufficient information to show how the product has been designed and manufactured |
| | Simple ideas expressed clearly but with errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling indicating a weakness in these areas |
| 0 – 1 | Evidence of communication and presentation at basic level with little use of technical language |
| | The information appears disjointed; it may be difficult to see how the product has been designed and manufactured |
| | Some attempt made to express ideas but with significant errors of grammar, punctuation and spelling suggesting major weaknesses in these areas |

4 Scheme of Assessment

4.1 Aims

AS and A Level courses based on this specification should encourage candidates to:

- make use of tacit knowledge and reflective practices in order to work with tasks that are challenging and often require definition
- develop and sustain their creativity and innovative practice
- recognise and overcome challenges and constraints when working towards the production of high-quality products
- develop a critical understanding of the influences of the processes and products of design and technological activities from both contemporary and historical perspectives

- draw on a range of skills and knowledge from other subject areas
- draw on and apply knowledge, understanding and skills of production processes to a range of design and technology activities
- develop an understanding of contemporary design and technology practices
- use digital technologies and information handling skills to enhance their design and technological capability
- recognise the values inherent in design and technological activities, and develop critical evaluation skills in technical, aesthetic, ethical, economic, environmental, sustainable, social, cultural and entrepreneurial contexts.

4.2 Assessment Objectives (AOs)

The Assessment Objectives are common to AS and A Level. Knowledge, understanding, skills and their applications are closely linked.

AS and A level specifications should require that all candidates demonstrate the following Assessment Objectives in the context of the content and skills set out in Section 3 (Subject Content).

The Assessment Objectives apply to the whole specification for AS and A Level.

AO1 Candidates should demonstrate specific knowledge and understanding and be able to apply that knowledge and understanding in combination with appropriate skills in their designing; and should communicate ideas and outcomes and demonstrate strategies for evaluation

AO2 Candidates should be able to demonstrate and apply skills, knowledge and understanding of relevant materials, processes and techniques, and use materials and equipment to produce suitable and appropriate outcomes; and should communicate ideas and outcomes and demonstrate strategies for evaluation

Quality of Written Communication (QWC)

In GCE specifications which require candidates to produce written material in English, candidates must:

- ensure that text is legible and that spelling, punctuation and grammar are accurate so that meaning is clear
- select and use a form and style of writing appropriate to purpose and to complex subject matter
- organise information clearly and coherently, using specialist vocabulary where appropriate.

In this specification, QWC will be assessed in Units 2, 3 and 4 by means of specific criteria incorporated within the mark schemes.

Weighting of Assessment Objectives for AS

The table below shows the approximate weighting of each of the Assessment Objectives in the AS units.

| Assessment Objectives | Unit Weig | htings (%) | Overall weighting of AOs (%) |
|--------------------------------|-----------|------------|------------------------------|
| | Unit 1 | Unit 2 | |
| AO1 | 30 | 30 | 60 |
| AO2 | 20 | 20 | 40 |
| Overall weighting of units (%) | 50 | 50 | 100 |

Weighting of Assessment Objectives for A Level

The table below shows the approximate weighting of each of the Assessment Objectives in the AS and A2 units.

| Assessment Objectives | Unit Weightings (%) | | | Overall weighting of AOs (%) | |
|--------------------------------|---------------------|--------|--------|------------------------------|-----|
| | Unit 1 | Unit 2 | Unit 3 | Unit 4 | |
| AO1 | 15 | 15 | 15 | 15 | 60 |
| AO2 | 10 | 10 | 10 | 10 | 40 |
| Overall weighting of units (%) | 25 | 25 | 25 | 25 | 100 |

4.3 National Criteria

This specification complies with the following.

- The Subject Criteria for Design and Technology
- The Code of Practice for GCE

- The GCE AS and A Level Qualification Criteria
- The Arrangements for the Statutory Regulation of External Qualifications in England, Wales and Northern Ireland: Common Criteria

4.4 Prior Learning

There are no prior learning requirements.

We recommend that candidates should have acquired the skills and knowledge associated with a GCSE Design and Technology course or equivalent.

It must be emphasised that this is not a requirement for candidates wishing to study the course offered through this specification. Any requirements are set at the discretion of centres.

4.5 Synoptic Assessment and Stretch and Challenge

Synoptic assessment in Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles) is assessed in the A2 units by testing the candidates' understanding of the connections between the different elements of the subject and their holistic understanding of the subject (Unit 3) and by requiring the candidates to combine their designing and making skills with knowledge and understanding in order to produce a substantial designing and making activity (Unit 4).

The requirement that Stretch and Challenge is included at A2 is met by the assessment of candidates' understanding of the connectivity of the subject content through synoptic questions in Unit 3, including the requirement to answer questions of an open-ended, extended nature. Stretch and challenge is also addressed in Unit 4 where candidates are expected to apply their knowledge and understanding of the subject content in order to produce a significant design-and-make activity.

4.6 Access to Assessment for Disabled Students

AS/A Levels often require assessment of a broader range of competences. This is because they are general qualifications and, as such, prepare candidates for a wide range of occupations and higher level courses.

The revised AS/A Level qualification and subject criteria were reviewed to identify whether any of the competences required by the subject presented a potential barrier to any disabled candidates. If this were the case, the situation was reviewed again to ensure that such competences were included only where essential to the subject. The findings of this process were discussed with disability groups and with disabled people.

Reasonable adjustments are made for disabled candidates in order to enable them to access the assessments. For this reason, very few candidates will have a complete barrier to any part of the assessment.

Candidates who are still unable to access a significant part of the assessment, even after exploring all possibilities through reasonable adjustments, may still be able to receive an award. They would be given a grade on the parts of the assessment they have taken and there would be an indication on their certificate that not all the competences had been addressed.

Candidates with a visual impairment may find this subject difficult to access fully.

This will be kept under review and may be amended in the future.

5 Administration

5.1 Availability of Assessment Units and Certification

After June 2013, examinations and certification for this specification are available in June only.

5.2 Entries

Please refer to the current version of *Entry Procedures and Codes* for up-to-date entry procedures. You should use the following entry codes for the units and for certification.

Unit 1 – TEXT1

Unit 2 - TEXT2

Unit 3 - TEXT3

Unit 4 - TEXT4

AS certification - 1561

A Level certification - 2561

5.3 Private Candidates

This specification is available to private candidates under certain conditions. Because of the nature of the coursework, candidates must be attending an AQA centre which will supervise and assess the coursework. As we will no longer be producing supplementary guidance in hard copy, see our

website for guidance and information on taking exams and assessments as a private candidate:

www.aqa.org.uk/exams-administration/entries/private-candidates

5

5.4 Access Arrangements and Special Consideration

We have taken note of equality and discrimination legislation and the interests of minority groups in developing and administering this specification.

We follow the guidelines in the Joint Council for Qualifications (JCQ) document: Access Arrangements, Reasonable Adjustments and Special Consideration: General and Vocational Qualifications. This is published on the JCQ website (http://www.jcq.org.uk) or you can follow the link from our website (http://www.aqa.org.uk).

Access Arrangements

We can make arrangements so that candidates with disabilities can access the assessment. These arrangements must be made **before** the examination. For example, we can produce a Braille paper for a candidate with a visual impairment.

Special Consideration

We can give special consideration to candidates who have had a temporary illness, injury or indisposition at the time of the examination. Where we do this, it is given **after** the examination.

Applications for access arrangements and special consideration should be submitted to AQA by the Examinations Officer at the centre.

5.5 Language of Examinations

We will provide units in English only.

5.6 Qualification Titles

Qualifications based on this specification are:

- AQA Advanced Subsidiary GCE in Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles), and
- AQA Advanced Level GCE in Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles).

5.7 Awarding Grades and Reporting Results

The AS qualification will be graded on a five-point scale: A, B, C, D and E. The full A Level qualification will be graded on a six-point scale: A*, A, B, C, D and E. To be awarded an A*, candidates will need to achieve a grade A on the full A Level qualification and an A* on the aggregate of the A2 units.

For AS and A Level, candidates who fail to reach the minimum standard for grade E will be recorded as U (unclassified) and will not receive a qualification certificate. Individual assessment unit results will be certificated.

5

5.8 Re-sits and Shelf-life of Unit Results

Unit results remain available to count towards certification, whether or not they have already been used, as long as the specification is still valid.

Each unit is available in June only. Candidates may re-sit a unit any number of times within the shelf-life of the specification. The best result for each unit will count towards the final qualification. Candidates who wish to repeat a qualification may do so by retaking one or more units. The appropriate subject award entry, as well as the unit entry/entries, must be submitted in order to be awarded a new subject grade.

Candidates will be graded on the basis of the work submitted for assessment.

6 Coursework Administration

The Head of Centre is responsible to AQA for ensuring that coursework/portfolio work is conducted in accordance with AQA's instructions and JCQ instructions.

6.1 Supervision and Authentication of Coursework

The Code of Practice for GCE requires:

- candidates to sign the Candidate Record Form (CRF) to confirm that the work submitted is their own, and
- teachers/assessors to confirm on the CRF that the work assessed is solely that of the candidate concerned and was conducted under the conditions laid down by the specification.

The completed CRF for each candidate must be attached to his/her work. All teachers who have assessed the work of any candidate entered for each component must sign the declaration of authentication. Failure to sign the authentication statement may delay the processing of the candidates' results.

The teacher should be sufficiently aware of the candidate's standard and level of work to appreciate if the coursework submitted is beyond the talents of the candidate.

In most centres, teachers are familiar with candidates' work through class and homework assignments. Where this is not the case, teachers should make sure that **all** coursework is completed under direct supervision.

In all cases, some direct supervision is necessary to ensure that the coursework submitted can be confidently authenticated as the candidate's own.

- If it is believed that a candidate has received additional assistance and this is acceptable within the guidelines for the relevant specification, the teacher/assessor should award a mark which represents the candidate's unaided achievement. The authentication statement should be signed and information given on the relevant form.
- If the teacher/assessor is unable to sign the authentication statement for a particular candidate, then the candidate's work cannot be accepted for assessment.

6.2 Malpractice

Teachers should inform candidates of the AQA Regulations concerning malpractice.

Candidates must not:

- submit work which is not their own
- lend work to other candidates
- allow other candidates access to, or the use of, their own independently-sourced source material
- include work copied directly from books, the internet or other sources without acknowledgement or an attribution
- submit work typed or word-processed by a third person without acknowledgement.

These actions constitute malpractice, for which a penalty (eg disqualification from the examination) will be applied.

If malpractice is suspected, the Examinations Officer should be consulted about the procedure to be followed.

Where suspected malpractice in coursework/ portfolios is identified by a centre after the candidate has signed the declaration of authentication, the Head of Centre must submit full details of the case to AQA at the earliest opportunity. The form JCQ/M1 should be used. Copies of the form can be found on the JCQ website (http://www.jcq.org.uk/).

Malpractice in coursework/portfolios discovered prior to the candidate signing the declaration of authentication need not be reported to AQA, but should be dealt with in accordance with the centre's internal procedures. AQA would expect centres to treat such cases very seriously. Details of any work which is not the candidate's own must be recorded on the coursework/portfolio cover sheet or other appropriate place.

6.3 Teacher Standardisation

We will hold annual standardising meetings for teachers, usually in the autumn term, for the coursework units. At these meetings we will provide support in developing appropriate coursework tasks and using the marking criteria.

If your centre is new to this specification, you must send a representative to one of the meetings. If you have told us you are a new centre, either by submitting an estimate of entry or by contacting the subject team, we will contact you to invite you to a meeting.

We will also contact centres if:

- the moderation of coursework from the previous year has identified a serious misinterpretation of the coursework requirements
- inappropriate tasks have been set, or
- a significant adjustment has been made to a centre's marks.

In these cases, centres will be expected to send a representative to one of the meetings.

For all other centres, attendance is optional. If you are unable to attend and would like a copy of the materials used at the meeting, please contact the subject team at **dandt@aqa.org.uk**.

6.4 Internal Standardisation of Marking

Centres must standardise marking within the centre to make sure that all candidates at the centre have been marked to the same standard. One person must be responsible for internal standardisation. This person should sign the Centre Declaration Sheet to confirm that internal standardisation has taken place.

Internal standardisation involves:

• all teachers marking some trial pieces of work and identifying differences in marking standards

- discussing any differences in marking at a training meeting for all teachers involved in the assessment
- referring to reference and archive material such as previous work or examples from AQA's teacher standardising meetings but other valid approaches are permissible.

6.5 Annotation of Coursework

The Code of Practice for GCE states that the awarding body must require internal assessors to show clearly how the marks have been awarded in relation to the marking criteria defined in the specification and that the awarding body must provide guidance on how this is to be done.

The annotation will help the moderator to see as precisely as possible where the teacher considers that the candidates have met the criteria in the specification.

Work could be annotated by either of the following methods:

- key pieces of evidence flagged throughout the work by annotation either in the margin or in the text
- summative comments on the work, referencing precise sections in the work.

6.6 Submitting Marks and Sample Work for Moderation

The total mark for each candidate must be submitted to AQA and the moderator on the mark forms provided or by Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) by

the specified date. Centres will be informed which candidates' work is required in the samples to be submitted to the moderator.

6.7 Factors Affecting Individual Candidates

Teachers should be able to accommodate the occasional absence of candidates by ensuring that the opportunity is given for them to make up missed assessments.

If work is lost, AQA should be notified immediately of the date of the loss, how it occurred, and who was responsible for the loss. Centres should use the JCQ form JCQ/LCW to inform AQA Candidate Services of the circumstances.

Where special help which goes beyond normal learning support is given, AQA must be informed through comments on the CRF so that such help can be taken into account when moderation takes place (see Section 6.1).

Candidates who move from one centre to another during the course sometimes present a problem for a scheme of internal assessment. Possible courses of action depend on the stage at which the move takes place. If the move occurs early in the course, the new centre should take responsibility for assessment. If it occurs late in the course, it may be possible to arrange for the moderator to assess the work through the 'Educated Elsewhere' procedure. Centres should contact AQA at the earliest possible stage for advice about appropriate arrangements in individual cases.

6.8 Retaining Evidence and Re-using Marks

The centre must retain the work of all candidates, with CRFs attached, under secure conditions, from the time it is assessed, to allow for the possibility of an enquiry about results. The work may be returned

to candidates after the deadline for enquiries about results. If an enquiry about a result has been made, the work must remain under secure conditions in case it is required by AQA.

6.9 Candidate Record Forms

A revised Candidate Record Form has been introduced for use with Unit 2 and Unit 4, the centre assessed components. Examples of both of the Candidate Record Forms are shown on the AQA website

It is hoped that the introduction of these revised forms will be welcomed by centres as it is felt that they will offer benefits to candidates, teachers and moderators alike.

For candidates, the forms will provide a clear indication of the criteria against which they will be assessed and they will allow candidates to signpost where specific aspects of their folder work meets the stated criteria. The intention is to encourage candidates to provide succinct evidence of work undertaken and remove the requirement for the inclusion of large amounts of work in the folder.

The revised forms enable the teacher/assessor to clearly identify where evidence of meeting the criteria can be found, thereby facilitating the process of teacher/assessor annotation.

Finally, it is expected that the completion of these revised Candidate Record Forms will enable the moderator to more easily identify where appropriate credit has been awarded by the teacher/assessor.

For Unit 2, it is expected that the candidate will complete the Candidate Record Form to indicate where, in their folder work, they have addressed each of the assessment criteria. It is not expected that they will provide any more information other than the page reference in their folder to show where specific criteria have been addressed.

For Unit 4, candidates are asked to include in some sections of the Candidate Record Form specific information which will form part of the final project. In other sections, they will need to indicate where in their folder particular assessment criteria have been addressed. By doing this it is hoped that we can encourage a more focused approach by candidates and remove the need for an excessive number of pages in the folder.

7 Moderation

7.1 Moderation Procedures

Moderation of the coursework is by inspection of a sample of candidates' work, sent by post from the centre to a moderator appointed by AQA, and centre visits, where appropriate, to assess practical outcomes. The centre marks must be submitted to AQA and to the moderator by the specified deadline (see http://www.aqa.org.uk/deadlines.php). We will let centres know which candidates' work will be required in the sample to be submitted for moderation.

Following the re-marking of the sample work, the moderator's marks are compared with the centre

marks to determine whether any adjustment is needed in order to bring the centre's assessments into line with standards generally. In some cases, it may be necessary for the moderator to call for the work of other candidates in the centre. In order to meet this possible request, centres must retain under secure conditions and have available the coursework and the CRF of every candidate entered for the examination and be prepared to submit it on demand. Mark adjustments will normally preserve the centre's order of merit, but where major discrepancies are found, we reserve the right to alter the order of merit.

7.2 Post-moderation Procedures

On publication of the AS/A Level results, we will provide centres with details of the final marks for the coursework unit.

The candidates' work will be returned to the centre after the moderation has taken place. The centre will receive a report with, soon after, the

despatch of published results giving feedback on the appropriateness of the tasks set, the accuracy of the assessments made, and the reasons for any adjustments to the marks.

We reserve the right to retain some candidates' work for archiving or standardising purposes.

/

Appendices

A Performance Descriptions

These performance descriptions show the level of attainment characteristic of the grade boundaries at A Level. They give a general indication of the required learning outcomes at the A/B and E/U boundaries at AS and A2. The descriptions should be interpreted in relation to the the content outlined in the specification; they are not designed to define that content.

The grade awarded will depend in practice upon the extent to which the candidate has met the Assessment Objectives (see Section 4) overall.

Shortcomings in some aspects of the examination may be balanced by better performances in others.

AS Performance Descriptions for Design and Technology

| | Assessment Objective 1 | Assessment Objective 2 | |
|---------------------------------------|--|---|--|
| Assessment Objectives | Candidates should demonstrate specific knowledge and understanding and be able to apply that knowledge and understanding in combination with appropriate skills in their designing, and should communicate ideas and outcomes and demonstrate strategies for evaluation. | Candidates should be able to demonstrate and apply skills, knowledge and understanding of relevant materials, processes and techniques and use materials and equipment to produce suitable and appropriate outcomes, and should communicate ideas and outcomes and demonstrate strategies for evaluation. | |
| A/B boundary performance descriptions | Candidates characteristically: a) demonstrate specific knowledge and understanding of the working characteristics of materials, ingredients, components and their uses and/or systems and control develop an appropriate brief and specification understand quality issues use correct technical language relevant to the task b) research and communicate a broad range of ideas and information effectively in a creative and innovative way through some recognition of values issues or uniqueness (for the candidate) or connections with other ideas demonstrate that they understand the main features of industrial and commercial practices related to manufacturing systems including the use of ICT and stages of production show that they understand health and safety issues through the regulatory and legislative framework | Candidates characteristically: a) apply skills that demonstrate understanding of the working characteristics and potential application of a range of materials, ingredients, components and/or systems and control including preparation and processing • demonstrate that they understand the principles of testing materials and/or components b) demonstrate that they understand and can carry out appropriate making processes during product development/manufacture • understand and use safe working practices • use appropriate skills in the development of a practical outcome c) communicate ideas and outcomes • refine and/or modify products and/or manufacturing methods • use a range of criteria: for example, social, economic, environmental, cultural, and ethical/moral | |
| | c) demonstrate clear strategies for testing and evaluating by taking into account form and function of a product, trends and styles of products reflecting environmental, cultural and ethical/moral issues as well as stylistic and engineering considerations analyse and assess information and ideas in appropriate ways, including ICT, enabling others to interpret them. | considerations d) demonstrate clear strategies for testing and evaluating by analysing the planning, production and manufacturing methods. | |

AS Performance Descriptions (continued)

| | Assessment Objective 1 | Assessment Objective 2 |
|---------------------------------------|--|---|
| E/U boundary performance descriptions | Candidates characteristically: a) demonstrate some understanding of how their knowledge and understanding of materials, ingredients, components and their uses meet general design criteria • develop an outline brief and specification b) communicate ideas and information appropriately • demonstrate that they understand at least one feature of industrial and commercial practices, a relevant manufacturing system and some stages of production c) demonstrate some strategies for testing and evaluating by taking into account form and function of a product and the need for appropriate modifications. | Candidates characteristically: a) demonstrate that they understand the application of a limited range of materials, ingredients and components including their uses • demonstrate some knowledge of testing a material or component b) demonstrate that they understand and can carry out a limited range of making processes safely during product development • demonstrate that they understand how to plan for production c) communicate ideas and outcomes through a suitable development process and manufacturing method d) demonstrate the ability to test and evaluate a limited range of manufacturing methods. |

A2 Performance Descriptions for Design and Technology

| | Assessment Objective 1 | Assessment Objective 2 |
|--------------------------|---|---|
| Assessment Objectives | Candidates should demonstrate specific knowledge and understanding and be able to apply that knowledge and understanding in combination with appropriate skills in their designing and should communicate ideas and outcomes and demonstrate strategies for evaluation. | Candidates should be able to demonstrate and apply skills, knowledge and understanding of relevant materials, processes and techniques and use materials and equipment to produce suitable and appropriate outcomes, and should communicate ideas and outcomes and demonstrate strategies for evaluation. |
| descriptions | a) demonstrate specific ability to analyse questions and/or contexts and select and explain relevant ways to proceed during in-depth study take account of a wide range of factors and show knowledge and understanding of materials and manufacturing processes combine distinct elements of technical information in their responses | a) demonstrate their understanding of systems and control and/or products and applications by discriminating between aspects of a system or product that perform and those which could be improved after in-depth study demonstrate understanding of reliable and quantifiable performances of a range of materials, components and production processes demonstrate applied knowledge of |
| | develop an initial design brief, an outline specification and produce a design for manufacturing, considering maintenance and product life clarify the task during designing and making activities identifying a wide range of user needs and carry out in-depth research including some relevant primary research b) originate a range of ideas and possible solutions when generating and developing proposals apply knowledge and understanding to develop and refine their solutions, demonstrating evidence of creativity and innovation through recognition of values issues or uniqueness (for the candidate) or connections with other ideas | the working properties and functions of materials and components • work safely, accurately and skilfully with materials, components, tools and processes including appropriate technologies to create high-quality products that match the specification b) plan, demonstrating an awareness of industrial methods and approaches during designing and making activities • select an appropriate range of tools and equipment and plan processes • manage time by anticipating potential problems and responding to changing circumstances • determine the degree of accuracy required for products to function as intended, and apply relevant external standards to their task • test the performance of their product against specified criteria and act on their findings by modifying their proposals if appropriate |

A2 Performance Descriptions (continued)

| | Assessment Objective 1 | Assessment Objective 2 |
|---------------------------------------|--|---|
| A/B boundary performance descriptions | c) research, analyse and communicate a broad range of ideas and information effectively use technical language fluently and draw appropriate conclusions model aspects of their ideas when developing proposals d) demonstrate clear strategies for testing and evaluating by taking into account the working characteristics of materials and components, the product's impact on society, and the precise requirements of the brief and/or specification confidently analyse ideas and outcomes and draw highly appropriate conclusions, enhancing interpretation by others. | c) communicate ideas and outcomes, using ICT appropriately for communicating, modelling, data handling, controlling or manufacture • work to devised plans and seek agreement on realistic deadlines • take account of the relationship between material, form and manufacturing processes d) demonstrate clear strategies for evaluating • analyse information critically and objectively • assess the extent to which their work will meet genuine needs • devise quality assurance procedures and review the way the work plan is followed using external sources for evaluating products. |
| E/U boundary performance descriptions | Candidates characteristically: a) demonstrate their ability to analyse questions and/or contexts and record some relevant information during in-depth study take account of a limited range of factors take account of requirements and demonstrate some knowledge and understanding of manufacturing processes during product analysis develop a design brief and specification | Candidates characteristically: a) demonstrate a basic understanding of systems and control and/or products and applications during in-depth study b) demonstrate some understanding of a limited range of materials, ingredients, components and production processes c) work safely with materials, ingredients and components to create a product that meets their specification d) plan, demonstrating some awareness of industrial methods during making activities |

A2 Performance Descriptions (continued)

| | Assessment Objective 1 | Assessment Objective 2 |
|---------------------------------------|--|--|
| E/U boundary performance descriptions | b) use technical language relevant to the task clarify the task, identifying user needs, and carry out research during | e) select some appropriate tools and resources f) carry out at least one test of their product |
| | designing and making activities • generate ideas based on their own knowledge and understanding, satisfying most of the specification criteria • show awareness of manufacturing processes • develop their proposals and model at least one aspect • indicate at least one working characteristic of a material or component • demonstrate some strategies for testing and evaluating that refer to products and the need for modifications • evaluate ideas and outcomes in an appropriate way, including ICT, and draw conclusions enabling others to understand them. | g) work to an outline plan h) use ICT appropriately for communicating, modelling, data handling, controlling or manufacture i) demonstrate strategies for testing and evaluating • analyse information • assess the extent to which the product meets its specification. |

B Spiritual, Moral, Ethical, Social and other Issues

European Dimension

AQA has taken account of the 1988 Resolution of the Council of the European Community in preparing this specification and associated specimen units.

Environmental Education

AQA has taken account of the 1988 Resolution of the Council of the European Community and the Report **'Environmental Responsibility: An Agenda for Further and Higher Education'** 1993 in preparing this specification and associated specimen units.

Avoidance of Bias

AQA has taken great care in the preparation of this specification and specimen units to avoid bias of any kind.

Health and Safety

Health and safety impinges on all aspects of Design and Technology and requires consideration in terms of the maker, the manufacturer, the individual user and society at large. Health and safety and related issues are expected therefore to be an integral part of all teaching. They will form part of the assessment criteria for all coursework units and may also be tested in any externally assessed unit.

C Overlaps with other Qualifications

Overlaps exist between this and the Design and Technology: Product Design (3-D Design), Food Technology and Systems and Control Technology specifications. The overlap is primarily in the design process and the scheme of assessment. As all four specifications conform to the GCE AS and

A Level Subject Criteria for Design and Technology, there are also overlaps of broad content, eg ICT, Health and Safety, systems and control and industrial and commercial practice, but each is dealt with in the context of the material areas embodied in the specification title.

D Key Skills

Key Skills qualifications have been phased out and replaced by Functional Skills qualifications in English, Mathematics and ICT from September 2010.



GCE Design and Technology: Product Design (Textiles) (2560) For exams from June 2014 onwards

Qualification Accreditation Number: AS 500/2253/2 - A Level 500/2241/6

For updates and further information on any of our specifications, to find answers or to ask a question: register with ASK AQA at:

http://www.aqa.org.uk/help-and-contacts/ask-aqa

For information on courses and events please visit:

http://www.aqa.org.uk/professional-development

Every specification is assigned a discounting code indicating the subject area to which it belongs for performance measure purposes.

The discount codes for this specification are:

AS XA5A

A Level 9050

The definitive version of our specification will always be the one on our website, this may differ from printed versions.

Copyright © 2013 AQA and its licensors. All rights reserved.

AQA Education (AQA), is a company limited by guarantee registered in England and Wales (company number 3644723), and a registered charity 1073334.

Registered address: AQA, Devas Street, Manchester M15 6EX.

